
NATIONALLY SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS PANEL
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room - Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Tuesday, 1st March, 2016
Time: 9.30 am
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 January 2016 1 - 2

4. NuGeneration Ltd - Moorside Project - Statement of Community 
Consultation 

3 - 28

Membership: Councillors Mike Starkie (Chair), Lena Hogg (Deputy Chair), Michael McVeigh, 
David Moore and David Riley

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



NATIONALLY SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS PANEL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 18 JANUARY 2016

Present: Councillors Mike Starkie, in the Chair; Lena Hogg, Michael McVeigh and David Moore

Officers: Pat Graham (Managing Director), John Groves (Strategic Nuclear and Planning 
Manager), Clive Willoughby (Member Services Technical Support Officer & Interim Scrutiny 
Officer) and Charlotte Brown (Planning Officer)

13 Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received.

14 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

There were no Declarations of Interest made.

15 Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 September 2015 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2015 be signed by the 
Mayor as a correct record.

16 National Grid - North West Coast Connection Project - Statement of Community 
Consultation. 

The Strategic Nuclear and Planning Manager advised the panel that as part of the process of 
seeking a Development Consent Order for a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project, it is 
necessary for an applicant to consult with the Council to enable consideration of a Statement 
of Community Consultation.

The panel were further informed that formal consultation process provides limited time for 
response and that National Grid had been engaged with the Council as the Statement of 
Community Consultation had been prepared. 

The issue of the Statement of Community Consultation had been delayed and was now due 
on 22 February 2016.

Members then considered the draft Statement of Community Consultation and the initial 
officer response.

During the discussion that followed Members requested that an additional consultation event 
be held in Whitehaven.

AGREED -    that the draft response be updated and submitted, once the Statement of 
Community Consultation response period was open, subject to there being no major changes 
from the previous draft. If there are any major changes, a further meeting of the Nationally 
Significant Infrastructures Projects Panel would be arranged prior to the submission deadline 
of 22 March.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



17 Project Updates - verbal report 

The Strategic Nuclear and Planning Manager provided the panel with an update on the 
Moorside project.

Members were reminded that a briefing from NuGen was to be held on 10th February 2016 at 
the Civic Hall, Whitehaven.

AGREED - that the update be received. 

The Meeting closed at 3.10 pm 

Mayor

Page 2



NuGeneration Limited – Moorside Project – Statement of Community Consultation

LEAD OFFICER: John Groves
REPORT AUTHOR: John Groves

Summary and Recommendation:

As part of the process of seeking a Development Consent Order (DCO) for a Nationally 
Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP), it is necessary for an applicant to consult with the 
Council to enable consideration a Statement of Community Consultation (SoCC).

This consultation is about the process of community engagement. It is not about commenting 
on the detail of the proposed development itself.

NuGen have prepared a SoCC which relates to their proposals to construct the Moorside 
Nuclear Power Station and to carry out related development needed to enable that 
construction.  A previous SoCC was the subject of consultation with the Council in March 
2015.  This related to a first, initial consultation on the prospective DCO which NuGen 
intended to submit.  NuGen has decided to carry out a second consultation based on more 
detailed proposals as progress is made towards the submission of a formal application for a 
Development Consent Order to the Secretary of State.  This consultation relates to a revised 
SoCC updating the engagement process, in part through lessons learned at the stage 1 
consultation.

Members of the panel are requested to consider the submitted statement, and the response 
which the Council would make to Moorside.

1. Introduction

1.1. The stage 1 consultation which ran from May to July 2015 outlined NuGen’s proposals 
for a power station at the Moorside site and areas where it was proposed that associated 
development – including worker accommodation might be located.

1.2. Prior to that consultation the Council had been asked to consider a statement of 
common ground which represented NuGen’s intended processes for seeking to engage 
with members.  These comments were considered by the Executive as this Panel has not 
been fully constituted in March 2015 when the matter discussed.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



1.3. NuGen intend to conduct a second stage of consultation from May to July 2016.  
Proposals are gaining greater detail than those tabled last year.  A revised SoCC is tabled 
to provide scope for comment on the process of engagement which is now to be applied

1.4. The nature of the proposals is not a matter for consideration here.  There will 
opportunity for the Council to formalise its views on the development proposals during 
the May to June consultation.

2. Purpose of the Report

2.1. Prior to the submission of the application for a DCO the applicant is required to 
consultant statutory parties, including the Council, over its intended approach to 
consultation over its proposals leading up to the submission of the DCO application.  The 
Council has 28 days to respond.  This report anticipates the submission of the formal SoCC 
and the Council’s response within the statutory timeframe.

2.2. The formal consultation process provides limited time for response.  Moorside have 
engaged with the council as the SoCC has been in preparation.  Attached documentation 
includes the draft SoCC and initial officer response. Appendices 1 and 2. 

3. Key Issues

3.1 Response to the draft SoCC notes acceptance that the basic principles for consultation 
adopted are robust and meet expectations relating to the engagement with the residents 
and businesses within the Borough.  The lessons learned from last year’s consultation are 
reflected in the revised document.  This particularly relates to assessment of the profile 
of respondents to the 2015 consultation.  This appeared to show that those under 45 and 
working did not respond to consultation.  Events and publicity are designed to seek to 
address this issue.  Other hard to reach groups – the elderly, those whose may find it 
difficult to attend events or to communicate their concerns are generally appropriately 
accommodated in terms of access to events and information, although adequacy of 
consultation has previously been questioned because there is no clear formalised strategy 
for the process by which such groups are engaged in the first instance.

3.2 It is a matter of persistent concern that the project remains insufficiently detailed and 
      defined to enable issues of core concern to be properly assessed by the residents and  
      businesses of Copeland.  The previous consultation process flagged transport, health  
      facilities and economic opportunity as the main issues of concern to the community.  
      Whilst proposals do include more detail that previously the case this may still be an issue 
      which impacts on the effectiveness of the consultation process at this stage.

3.3 It has been a matter of debate as to how far the SoCC should make reference to wider 
consultation and that consultation on the project should not be limited to seeking the 
views of residents.  It should ensure engagement with local business and potential supply, 
with the education and academic community, particularly young people who may 
ultimately be those taking advantage of the business and employment opportunities 
presented by this development.  NuGen say that this is because the SoCC has a very 

Page 4



specific function defined in legislation and that a wider Consultation Strategy addresses 
contact with the wider community.  The SoCC does make some provision for presentations 
to residents whilst on work premises including Sellafield and sets aside time for as yet 
undefined engagement in schools, but the Consultation Strategy is not signposted to any 
significant extent within the SoCC.

3.5The scope for the Moorside project to stimulate growth and to provide opportunity for 
lasting legacy is afforded limited reference in the SoCC.  Again it is accepted that the 
Development Consent Order can only seek consideration of development directly related 
to the construction of the power station, these matters are so fundamental to the 
acceptability of the development that the SoCC should at least recognize this position and 
direct attention to other process and consultations where these issues can be 
appropriately addressed.  It is considered that the SoCC is similarly weak in the way in 
which it addresses consultation processes which might relate to development which is not 
considered through the DCO but through more conventional planning application process 
under the Town & Country Planning Act.

4. Conclusions 

4.1. The attached documents include the draft SoCC and a draft of the Council’s formal 
response to consultation relating to this document.

5. Background Papers

Appendices

1 Moorside Statement of Community Consultation
2 Copeland BC Comments on Moorside Draft Statement of Common Ground

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



TBC 2016

DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

STAGE TWO

How NuGen will consult with you  
on its proposals

Statement of Community Consultation

Page 7



PAGE 2DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

Contents

SECTION PAGE

1. Consulting you on NuGen’s proposals 3

2. About NuGen and the Moorside Project 5

3. National policy 7

4. The Development Consent Order process 8

5. Environmental impact 9

6. Local context 10

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation 11

8. Contact us 18

 

Page 8



PAGE 3DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

 NuGeneration Limited (NuGen), supported by its parent companies, is currently developing its 

proposals for the Moorside Project. The Moorside Project includes the construction and operation 

of a new generation nuclear power station of up to 3.6GW capacity called the ‘Moorside Power 

Station’. This will be located on land (referred to in this document as ‘the Moorside site’), which is 

to the west and north of the existing Sellafield Site, in Cumbria. The Moorside Project also includes 

other development such as worker accommodation, railway works and highway works. 

The Moorside Project is what is known as a ‘nationally significant infrastructure project’ and so must 

be consented through the Planning Act 2008 via a ‘development consent order’ (DCO). Any decision 

on consenting the Moorside Project under the Planning Act 2008 would be made by the Secretary 

of State, following submission of an application by NuGen (anticipated to be made in quarter two, 

2017) and an examination of that application which would be conducted by the Planning Inspectorate 

(anticipated to be in 2017/2018). 

The land for the future Moorside Power Station has been identified by the Government in a national 

policy statement as potentially suitable for a new nuclear power station. 

 Before a DCO application can be made, NuGen is required to consult with those living in the vicinity 

of the land to which NuGen’s proposed application relates (under Section 47 of the Planning Act 

2008). NuGen is also required to consult with key local authorities, persons with an interest in the land 

and prescribed statutory bodies (under Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008), as well as publicising 

our proposed application nationally (under Section 48 of the Planning Act 2008).

NuGen’s process for consulting people living in the vicinity of the land involves two stages: 

Stage One:  Strategic Issues Consultation, which was carried out from 16th May 2015 to 25th July 

2015. Information on how we have had regard to the feedback received during Stage 

One consultation will be found at www.nugeneration.com.

 Stage Two: Proposed Scheme Consultation which will run from 14th May 2016 to 30th July 2016. 

1. Consulting you on our proposals

Page 9



PAGE 4DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

This Statement of Community Consultation (SoCC) sets out how we will carry out the Stage Two 

Consultation and consult with people in the vicinity of the development. 

 The two stages of consultation will together help to shape the Moorside Project prior to the DCO 

application being submitted in 2017.

 In developing this SoCC we have consulted with the relevant local authorities and have taken their 

views into account. The relevant local authorities are:

 •  Copeland Borough Council – the Moorside site is in Copeland and what is known as 

‘Associated Development’ will also take place there. ‘Associated Development’ is defined 

in the Planning Act 2008 and is development which is associated with all or part of a 

nationally significant infrastructure project.

 • Allerdale Borough Council – ‘Associated Development’ may also take place in Allerdale.

 •  Cumbria County Council – the Moorside site and any ‘Associated Development’ would be 

located within Cumbria.

 •  Eden District Council – transport related mitigation measures may take place in this district. 

If so, it could be ‘Associated Development’.

 •  Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council – transport related mitigation measures may take 

place in this district. If so, it could be ‘Associated Development’.

 •  Carlisle City Council – transport related mitigation measures may take place in this district. 

If so, it could be ‘Associated Development’.

This SoCC covers details of:

WHO     We describe which groups of people we will be consulting.

WHEN We set out when we intend to consult with you.

WHAT  We describe what we are proposing to develop, what the process 
is for getting consent to carry out our project, and what we will be 
consulting on. 

HOW  We set out how we will consult with you and how we will have regard 
to the responses we receive.

 

1. Consulting you on our proposals

Page 10



PAGE 5DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

 NuGen is a UK nuclear company and a joint 
venture between Toshiba and Engie. NuGen 
combines the strengths of its two parent 
companies – two strong multinational companies 
with reputations for operational and engineering 
excellence, combined with comprehensive 
experience and expertise in the energy sector 
and over 350,000 employees worldwide.

 NuGen’s nuclear reactor technology provider 
is Westinghouse Electric Company, a group 
company of Toshiba, and a leading supplier 
of nuclear plant products and technologies to 
utilities throughout the world. Westinghouse 
technology is the basis for approximately one-
half of the world’s operating nuclear plants, 
including more than 50 percent of those in 
Europe.

 The Moorside Project encompasses both the proposed Moorside Power Station and also the 
supporting associated development, comprising both temporary and permanent works, referred 
to in this document as ‘Associated Development’. This ‘Associated Development’ is required for 
the Moorside Power Station’s construction and operation, and will take place on land both at the 
Moorside site and at other off-site locations. More detail about the Moorside Project will be available 
from 14th May 2016 via our Stage Two Consultation Document and Preliminary Environmental 

Information Report. 

NuGen’s Moorside Project 
aims to develop the Moorside 
Power Station, which will have a 
capacity of up to 3.6GW providing 
approximately seven percent of the 
UK’s current electricity requirement, 
equivalent to fuelling about six 
million homes, from a low-carbon 
energy source.

The development will include up 
to three Westinghouse AP1000® 
reactors, supporting cooling 
infrastructure, fuel and waste 

storage facilities, offices, training facilities, a visitor centre and other ancillary buildings, electricity 
transmission infrastructure, earthworks and landscaping, a marine off-loading facility and access and 
transport arrangements.

The supporting ‘Associated Development’, some of which will be in locations away from the 
Moorside site, includes transport infrastructure improvements, construction worker accommodation 
and related facilities, and transport and logistics centres.

2. About NuGen and the Moorside Project

The Westinghouse AP1000® Reactor

Page 11



PAGE 6DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

2. About NuGen and the Moorside Project

 For ‘Associated Development’ required by NuGen only during the construction phase of the 
Moorside Power Station, but not during its operational phase, NuGen will seek to encourage the 
potential for alternative permanent uses for the land, infrastructure and buildings as appropriate.

 The project will also utilise existing facilities and businesses to support the Moorside Project, but 
which are not currently anticipated to require new build development by NuGen. For these existing 
facilities, NuGen or their contractors and suppliers, will enter into any necessary commercial and 
funding arrangements for use of facilities, and including potentially expanded services.

In addition, the construction of the Moorside Project is anticipated to generate up to 21,000 jobs 
in total throughout the UK. During construction, the peak years will involve around 6,000 people 
employed at the Moorside site. During operation, the Moorside Project will directly employ around 
1,000 people for around 60 years, with additional employment in the decommissioning phase. 
NuGen will seek to maximise the opportunities for local jobs, resulting both directly and indirectly 
from the Moorside Project during construction and operation. The large increase in expenditure 
locally will also have benefits for local businesses, services and the Cumbrian economy in general.

Page 12



PAGE 7DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

The Secretary of State has set out policies in relation to nationally significant infrastructure projects 

in national policy statements. The Secretary of State must determine NuGen’s future application for 

a DCO in accordance with the tests set out in the Planning Act 2008 and the following national policy 

statements:

 • Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy (NPS EN-1)

 • National Policy Statement for Nuclear Energy Generation (NPS EN-6)

These documents can be viewed in detail at the following web address:

www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-policy-statements-

for-energy-infrastructure 

Collectively, these national policy statements establish that there is 

an urgent need for new electricity generating capacity, including from 

nuclear. NPS EN-6 makes clear that the need for a nuclear generating 

station at what is named the Moorside site has been demonstrated (it is 

referred to in the national policy statement as ‘Sellafield’). The Moorside 

Project is a priority project in the National Infrastructure Plan (2014).

The national policy statements also direct the Examining 

Authority about the matters, which they should and should 

not examine. In particular paragraph 2.7.3 of NPS EN-6 

states that the Examining Authority should not duplicate the 

functions of the nuclear regulator – the Office for Nuclear 

Regulation (ONR). As such the remit of the DCO process 

will focus on local impacts but not matters related to nuclear 

safety, security, protection of people or the transport of 

nuclear material. These matters will be considered by the 

ONR and other agencies through the nuclear site licence 

process.

3. National policy

Page 13



PAGE 8DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

NuGen will apply to the Secretary of State under the Planning Act 2008 for a DCO to construct, 

operate and maintain the nuclear power station and the Associated Development related to it. The 

DCO is also proposed to include powers for the compulsory acquisition of land and interests in land 

in order to allow for the effective delivery of the Moorside Project. 

 Our application would be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in 2017. If the application is 

accepted to be examined, an Examining Authority will be appointed to examine our application 

and representations made on it by interested parties. The Examining Authority will then submit its 

recommendation on the application to the Secretary of State who will make the final decision.

 Relevant local authorities will have an important role in this process. Local authorities, including 

Copeland Borough Council, Allerdale Borough Council, Eden District Council, Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council, Carlisle City Council and Cumbria County Council, may comment upon both the 

content and the quality of the Stage One and Stage Two consultations by making an adequacy of 

consultation representation to the Planning Inspectorate shortly after the application is submitted.

Relevant local authorities will also be invited to produce a ‘local impact report’ following the 

submission of our DCO application, which will give details of the likely impacts on the authority’s 

area arising from the Moorside Project. The Secretary of State must have regard to any local impact 

reports when making a decision on whether or not to grant a DCO for a project.

Anyone will be able to comment on our proposals during the Stage Two Consultation and your views 

will be important in helping us to develop the Moorside Project further. Once our application has 

been submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in 2017, then anyone will be able to register and make 

representations regarding the Moorside Project to the Examining Authority.

 Further information on the DCO process can be found on the Planning Inspectorate’s website at 

the following web address: http://infrastructure.planningportal.gov.uk/application-process/the-

process/ 

Possible planning application for  
site preparation works
In addition to the DCO for the Moorside Project, NuGen may also consider submitting a planning 

application under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for certain early site preparation works 

to Copeland Borough Council (as the local planning authority) to seek permission for these works in 

advance of the decision on the DCO.

 If so, NuGen will aim to carry out a consultation on the scope of any proposed early site preparation 

works at the same time as the Stage Two Consultation starting in May 2016.

4. The Development Consent Order process

Page 14



PAGE 9DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

5. Environmental impact

For any project of this scale it is necessary to produce a detailed assessment of the likely significant 

environmental effects – both positive and negative, and to consider the best way of mitigating 

significant adverse effects. This process is known as an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). The 

Moorside Project falls within the scope of the Infrastructure Planning (EIA) Regulations 2009 and as 

such, an environmental statement will be submitted with the DCO application in 2017. Preliminary 

environmental information will be presented with the Stage Two Consultation through the Preliminary 

Environmental Information Report (pursuant to Regulation 10 of the Infrastructure Planning (EIA) 

Regulations 2009) in order to allow consultation feedback to be given.

 Where there are significant adverse effects arising from the Moorside Project, we will, where possible, 

propose mitigation measures to prevent, reduce and where possible, offset any significant adverse 

effects on the environment.

Page 15



PAGE 10DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

Our plans for consulting people living in the vicinity of the Moorside site have been developed with 

consideration to the local context in West Cumbria and Cumbria. Cumbria is a geographically large 

county with a relatively small, dispersed population. Physically it is dominated by its mountainous 

centre, which is recognised for the importance of the tourism economy and for its environmental and 

landscape quality (by its designation as the Lake District National Park).

 The Moorside site sits on the coast in West Cumbria in the western extremity of the county. West 

Cumbria forms a coastal strip between the central highland core and the sea. Its transport links 

have developed north to south along the coastal strip and its economic and social links reflect this. 

The coastal strip has historically had a higher concentration of industrial activity, which has included 

shipping, coal, iron and steel, chemicals and more recently the nuclear industry. This activity was 

supported by sea based transport. The functional area of West Cumbria includes Copeland and 

Allerdale Borough Council areas. Barrow-in-Furness to the south has a similar industrial background 

but is geographically separated by the Duddon Estuary.

 Data from the Cumbria Intelligence Observatory indicates that international inward migration 

has had little impact on the character of the West Cumbrian and Cumbrian communities. 96% of 

Cumbrian residents and 97% of West Cumbrian residents were born in the UK compared to 86% of 

UK residents.

There has been a trend of young people leaving the area to develop their careers and, compared 

to the national average, West Cumbria has a lower proportion of people in the age range 0-44, a 

higher proportion of people in the age range 45-84, and a similar number of people in the 85 and 

over category.

Acorn statistics show that there are concentrations of people in ‘urban adversity’ in the main towns in 

West Cumbria. Population sparsity, poor transport and poor broadband facilities in more rural parts of the 

area mean that some of the population is remote from services and information.

These factors have been taken into account in developing our approach to this consultation.

Previous consultation
The DCO Stage 1 Consultation, the Strategic Issues Consultation, was carried out from 16th May 

2015 to 25th July 2015. 

This stage of the consultation was focused on strategic issues for the Moorside Project, including 

NuGen’s requirements and approach, broad locations and search areas for ‘Associated Development’, 

preliminary environmental information compiled by NuGen to date on the Moorside Project, and an 

indication of the scale of development. This consultation did not include detailed proposals for 

development, site layouts or designs. 

 The responses received and described in this report have been used to guide NuGen’s development 

of proposals for the forthcoming DCO Stage Two Consultation.

 Included in the consultation materials for DCO Stage Two will be an ‘Interim Consultation Report’ 

which sets out how we have had regard to the responses received during the Stage One Consultation 

and where we have not been able to act on feedback. In the case of the latter we will explain why 

this is the case. 

 

6. Local context

Page 16



PAGE 11DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

When we will consult
 The Stage Two DCO Consultation will begin on the 14th May 2016, for 11 weeks, finishing on the 

30th July 2016. 

The consultation will be aligned with the publication of national and local notices under Section 48 

of the Planning Act 2008.

 It will also align with consultation with key local authorities, prescribed statutory consultees and 

those with an interest in the land under Section 42 of the Planning Act 2008. 

A DCO Application is anticipated to be submitted in 2017. 

What we are consulting on
 The DCO Stage Two Consultation is the ‘Proposed Scheme Consultation’. This stage of the 

consultation will present details of the proposed Moorside Project, including: 

 • Site layout and design principles for the Moorside Power Station.

 • Proposals for specific ‘Associated Development’. 

 • Preliminary environmental information for the Moorside Project.

 • Supporting preliminary technical documents.

 •  Details of feedback received under the Stage 1 Consultation and how NuGen has had regard 

to this feedback.

 NuGen is not seeking feedback on the need for a nuclear power station at the Moorside site as this 

issue has been covered through the national policy statements. 

In this stage of consultation, we are seeking your feedback on: 

 • The draft proposals for the Moorside Power Station.

 • The draft proposals for the Associated Development.

 • Our proposed mitigation measures.

 • The preliminary environmental information.

 • Any other issues or feedback that you may have. 

What documents will we consult on for  
the Stage Two Consultation?
Consultation materials will be made available to explain various elements of the Moorside Project. 

Information will be available at three broad levels of detail. The following documents will be available 

throughout the consultation period, starting on 14th May 2016.

 Promotional: this material will contain high level information about the Moorside Project. Its primary 

role is to promote the consultation and direct people to where they can find more information. More 

information about our promotional campaign can be found on page 15 of this document.

 

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

Page 17



PAGE 12DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

Overview: this material is designed to give a thorough but non-technical overview of the proposals, 

key issues, benefits and potential impacts of the Moorside Project and will include:

 •  Overview Report - this will contain non-technical information about the proposals, including 

a summary of the preliminary environmental information and a guide to which documents 

contain more detail on specific issues. 

 • Statement of Community Consultation – this document. 

Detail: this material will contain a variety of more detailed information and will include: 

 • Draft Scheme Proposals

 • The Technical Folder which will include;

  • Preliminary Environmental Impact Report

  • The Technical Figures and Drawings Pack

In addition, the following documents will be provided:

 •  The Interim Consultation Report will set out the responses received in the DCO Stage One 

Consultation and how NuGen has had regard to these responses.

 •  A feedback form will be available in order to collect responses to the consultation. This will be 

available as a printed form as well as being available online (It may be incorporated into the 

overview document).

Where to find more information
Hard copies of all of Stage Two Consultation documents (including this SoCC) will be available to 

view at NuGen’s Moorside Information Centre at the Civic Hall in Whitehaven Town Centre, where we 

will also maintain an exhibition throughout the consultation period. The centre will be open Monday 

to Friday 10am to 4pm and Saturday mornings 10am to 12pm.

 The documents (including this SoCC) will also be available at all our public exhibitions, in selected 

libraries and in the main offices of relevant district and county councils (see below).

Copies of the documents (including this SoCC) will also be available to view and to download from 

the project website: www.nugenconsultation.com. 

Printed copies of the technical documents and plans are available upon request, however there may 

be a charge required to cover the cost of printing larger documents. 

You can access the documents (including this SoCC) from the following Council Offices:

 •  The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven CA28 7SJ. Open 8.45am-5.15pm Monday, 

Tuesday and Thursday, 10am-5.15pm Wednesday and 8.45am-4.30pm Friday.

 •  Allerdale House, Workington, CA14 3YJ. Open 8.45am-5pm Monday to Thursday and 8.45am-

4.30pm Friday.

 •  The Courts, Carlisle, Cumbria CA3 8NA. Open 9am-5pm Monday to Thursday and 9am-

4.30pm Friday.

 •  County Hall, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4RQ. Open 9am-5pm Monday to Thursday and 9am-

4.30pm Friday.

Page 18



PAGE 13DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

Libraries Opening times

Whitehaven Library, Lowther Street,  

Whitehaven CA28 7QZ

Fri 9am–5pm, Sat 10am–3pm, Sun Closed, Mon 9am–5pm,  

Tues 9am–6pm, Wed 9am–5pm, Thurs 9am–6pm

Workington Library, Vulcans Lane, 

Workington CA14 2ND

Fri 9am–5pm, Sat 9am–2pm, Sun Closed, Mon 9am–6pm,  

Tues 9am–5pm, Wed 9am–6pm, Thurs 9am–5pm

Carlisle Library, 11 Globe Lane, Carlisle 

CA3 8NX

Fri 9am–5:30pm, Sat 9am–5pm, Sun 12–4pm,  

Mon 9am–5:30pm, Tues 9am–7pm, Wed 9am–5:30pm,  

Thurs 9am–7pm

Barrow Library, Ramsden Square, 

Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1LL

Mon 9.30am-7pm, Tues 9.30am-5pm, Wed 9.30am-7pm,  

Thurs 9.30am-12noon, Fri 9.30am-5pm, Sat 10am-4pm,  

Sun 12noon-4pm

Penrith Library, St. Andrew`s Churchyard, 

Penrith CA11 7YA

Mon 10am–7pm, Tues 10am–7pm, Wed 10am–1pm,  

Thurs 10am– 5pm, Fri 10am – 5pm, Sat 10am – 4pm,  

Sun 12noon – 4pm

Kendal Library, Stricklandgate, Kendal 

LA9 4PY

Mon 9.30am–7pm, Tues 9.30am–5pm, Wed 9.30am–7pm, 

Thurs 9.30am–12noon, Fri 9.30am–5pm, 

Sat 9.30am – 3.30pm, Sun 12noon – 4pm, 

Cleator Moor Library, Market Square, 

Cleator Moor CA25 5AP

Mon, Tues, Thurs & Fri 9am - 5pm, Wed 9am - 12pm,  

Sat- 9am-12pm, 

Egremont Library, Main Street, 

Egremont CA22 2DB

Fri 9am–12noon, 1–5pm, Sat 10am–12noon,  

Mon 9am–12noon, 1pm–5pm, Tues 9am–12pm, 1pm–5pm, 

Wed Closed, Thurs 9am–12pm, 1pm–5pm

Seascale Library, Gosforth Road, 

Seascale CA20 1PN

Mon 10am-12.30pm & 1pm-5pm, Wed 10am-12.30pm  

& 1pm-5pm Friday 10am-1230pm & 1pm-5pm

St Bees Library, St Bees Village School, 

Main Street, St Bees, CA27 0AA

Mon Closed, Tues 1.30pm - 5pm, Wed Closed,  

Thurs 1.30pm - 5pm, Fri - Sun Closed

Mirehouse Library, Meadow Road, 

Whitehaven CA28 8ER

Mon 1pm-5pm, Tues Closed, Wed 1pm-5pm, Thurs Closed, 

Fri 1pm-5pm , Sat 10am-12pm, Sun Closed

Gosforth Library, Public Hall, Gosforth, 

Seascale CA20 1AS

Mon 10am-12pm, Tues Closed, Wed 2.30pm-6.30pm,  

Thurs Closed, Fri 10am-12pm , Sat 10am-12pm, Sun Closed

You can access the documents (including this SoCC) from the following public libraries:

Page 19



PAGE 14DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

How will we engage with people?
We will use a number of ways to engage with people throughout the consultation process 

and ensure you are given the opportunity to find out more and take part. These include:

Exhibitions: We will provide information, give you the opportunity to talk to our expert 

team about our plans, enabling you to understand the proposals and reply to our 

consultation. These exhibitions will remain open into the evening to allow access for as 

many people as possible.

 A list of where we will be holding exhibitions can be found in on page 16 of  

this document. You will find more information on when and where the  

events are taking place in our newsletter (see below) and on our website:  

www.nugenconsultation.com. We will also be advertising in the local press  

and media.

 We will maintain an Information Centre at the Civic Hall in Whitehaven Town Centre. Here 

you can get information, ask questions and leave your views.

 Direct Mail: We will send the Overview Report, a newsletter and a feedback form to all 

addresses within the area shown on the map below. This area equates to the Whitehaven 

Travel to Work Area (TTWAs) (an Office of National Statistics defined area*). We will also 

send this information to any addresses close to the site of our proposed Associated 

Development. If you don’t receive a copy of these documents, and believe that you 

should have, please contact NuGen and we will send out further copies. 

 *The criteria 

determined by 

the Office for 

National Statistics 

for defining TTWAs 

is that generally 

at least 75% of 

an area’s resident 

workforce work 

in the area and at 

least 75% of the 

people who work in 

the area also live in 

the area.

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Broughton-in-Furness

Barrow-in-Furness

Millom

Askam-in-Furness

St Bees

Egremont

Cleator Moor

Seascale

Moorside

Hallthwaites

Whitehaven

Distington
Ullock

Lamplugh

Cockley Beck

Ulpha

Whitehaven Travel to Work direct mailing area

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Page 20



PAGE 15DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

 Newsletter: We will produce a regular newsletter which will be available on our 

consultation website: www.nugenconsultation.com and will be emailed to everyone 

who registers via the website to receive it. The newsletter will provide detail on the 

consultation, including how to get involved and where more information can be found. 

This is the newsletter referred to above that will be sent to certain addresses by direct 

mail. 

Press Campaign: This SoCC will be advertised in the following local newspapers:

• Whitehaven News

• News and Star

• Times and Star

• Cumberland News

• Cumberland and Westmorland Herald

• Westmorland Gazette

• North West Evening Mail

• Keswick Reminder

 We will run a press campaign from April 2016, including press releases and adverts. We 

will also offer press briefings to all significant local news publications. This campaign will 

announce and give information on our consultation events in advance of the start of the 

consultation period on 14th May 2016 and will run throughout the consultation period.

 Posters: These will include details of local exhibitions and how to respond to the 

consultation. We will send these to all parish and town councils in the districts where 

Nugen development is proposed to support the Moorside Project to enable them to 

promote the consultation. 

 TV/Radio: We will promote the consultation and events by offering interviews and 

briefings.

Website: All consultation documentation and details of all stages of consultation, 

including event locations and timings, will be available on our website:  

www.nugenconsultation.com, which will be sign-posted in all key literature.

Social media: We will use social media to publicise each stage of the consultation and 

to provide information on how to access events and information on how to respond. 

Presentations: We will offer to provide presentations on our proposals to councils in 

the vicinity of the Moorside site and close to the sites where ‘Associated Development’ 

is proposed on request. We will also offer presentations to schools and colleges and 

other groups on request.

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Presentations

Direct Mail Newsletter
Press 

Campaign Posters

TV/Radio

Exhibitions

Website Social mediaOrganisations 

Page 21



PAGE 16DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

• Whitehaven

• Cleator Moor

• St Bees

• Egremont

• Beckermet

• Braystones

• Gosforth

• Seascale

• Bootle

• Ravenglass

• Distington

• Millom

 Further out from the Moorside site, we will hold further public exhibitions in larger population 

centres. These have been selected so that the majority of people in West Cumbria would be within 

eight miles of an event within the West Cumbria area:

• Workington

• Maryport

• Wigton

• Cockermouth

• Keswick

• Broughton-in-Furness

• Askham-in-Furness

 

• Carlisle

• Penrith

• Kendal

• Barrow-in-Furness 

 To allow good access for working people we will also hold events specifically aimed at employees 

and students at a number of employment centres in West Cumbria:

We will also reserve a week within the consultation period where our consultation team will be 

available to engage in further events with schools and young peoples’ groups. 

The times, dates and locations of all consultation events will be publicised in a newsletter, on our 

consultation website www.nugenconsultation.com, and in local advertising before they occur. 

Where we will consult 
 This SoCC is concerned with NuGen’s approach and process for consultation with people living 

within the vicinity of the Moorside site for the Moorside Power Station and the sites where Associated 

Development is proposed.

We recognise that the development will have the greatest impact on the people that live nearest 

to the Moorside site and consequently they are likely to have the greatest interest in our proposals. 

However, this is a very large scale development with wide impacts and interest is likely to be 

widespread.

Near the Moorside site, on the West Cumbrian coast, we will hold a number of public exhibitions. 

Locations have been selected so that the majority of people in Copeland will be within five miles of 

an event. We will hold public exhibitions at:

In the wider sub-region, we will hold public exhibitions at the following key population centres:

• Sellafield Ltd

• Westlakes Science and Technology Park

• Lillyhall 

Page 22



PAGE 17DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

Hard to reach engagement 
 There are a number of categories of people in the area, who may have more difficulty in accessing 

consultations. We have taken into account these hard to reach groups in the development of this 

SoCC. The variety of channels that information is available through is designed to ensure that the 

majority of hard to reach groups are included in the consultation; this includes the provision of plain 

English summary documents and making documents available online and at multiple locations in 

hard copy. 

More information about how we are engaging with these specific groups can be found  

in NuGen’s Consultation Strategy. Details will be available on our consultation website  

www.nugenconsultation.com/

Other major consultations
 We are aware that a number of consultations have already taken place or may take place over the 

next 18 months that relate to planning, energy or nuclear related issues. To avoid confusion we have 

identified those currently known to us. We wish to make it clear that these consultations are separate 

and not linked to NuGen’s consultation on the development of Moorside. The other consultations 

include:

 The National Grid will be carrying out its second stage of consultation relating to the West Coast 

Connections Project which seeks to strengthen the electricity transmission infrastructure in the area. 

This is expected to take place from June 2016.

Copeland Borough Council will be consulting on the Site Allocations Document for their Local Plan 

in June/July 2016.

How you can respond
When the Stage Two Consultation, starts on 14th May 2016, you will be able to submit comments 

during the 11-week consultation period, up until 30th July 2016, in a number of ways:

By writing to FREEPOST – MOORSIDE HAVE YOUR SAY

By calling our Freephone number: 0800 157 7352

By emailing: haveyoursay@nugeneration.com

 From 14th May 2016, drop in to our Information Centre at the Civic Hall, Whitehaven. Open 

10am-4pm Monday to Friday and 10am-12pm Saturday. 

 Visit one of our public exhibition events occurring throughout the county. Details will be 

publicised in a newsletter, on our consultation website www.nugenconsultation.com, and in 

local advertising before the events occur.

Page 23



PAGE 18DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

7. DCO Stage Two Consultation

What happens to your response?
Comments submitted electronically via the ‘haveyoursay’ email address will trigger an automated 

confirmation of receipt during consultation periods. All responses will be recorded, reviewed and 

considered as part of the consultation process.

As this is a consultation exercise to support an application under the Planning Act 2008, responses 

received will be made public, subject to data protection laws.

Following the Stage Two Consultation NuGen will produce a feedback report in late 2016 that will 

summarise the key points arising from the Stage Two Consultation. 

A final consultation report will be submitted with the application for a DCO in 2017, explaining 

how responses from each of our consultations have been considered and taken into account in the 

development of our Moorside Project proposals. Where we have not altered our proposals to reflect 

comments, we will explain our reasoning.

Contact Details
Moorside Information Centre

Whitehaven Civic Hall, Lowther Street, Whitehaven

Email: haveyoursay@nugeneration.com

Freephone: 0800 157 7352

 

Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Copeland BC Comments on Moorside Draft Statement of Common ground

Copeland Borough Council response to Moorside Draft Statement of Community Consultation and 
Draft Consultation Strategy 

It is considered that the underlying approach indicated in the Statement of Community Consultation 
(SoCC) and Consultation Strategy is fundamentally sound. There are however a number of specific 
issues which are considered to merit comment.

Adequacy of Scope for Consultation

The Council recognises the need to adhere to requirements of S47 of the Planning Act 2008 with 
regard to preparation of a Statement of Community Consultation and the inference of the Act as to 
the necessity to consult with those living in the vicinity of the site.  It remains a matter of concern that 
the SoCC as drafted limits the scope to relate to community in its widest definition – not just residents. 
 It is anticipated that a fundamental aspect of the acceptance of the impacts of this development on 
Copeland will reflect the success of the project in supporting corporate ambitions for growth, 
stimulating local supply chain activity and creating employment opportunities particularly for young 
people in the Borough.  NuGen have produced a broader Consultation Strategy which offers the 
potential to address these matters but this should be more explicitly addressed in the SoCC.

Change from earlier draft

Whilst recognition of comment on earlier drafts of the SoCC is largely welcomed, the formal 
consultation document is substantially different in content as well as layout.  This has made 
assessment of the incorporation of previously suggested modification difficult and to some extent 
brings into question the value of the draft document.

Reference to Legacy (page 6)

The SoCC goes to some length to note the potential economic benefit which the project might bring 
to Copeland, but fails to adequately consider the ways in which the delivery of these benefits might 
be achieved.  The SoCC should consider how the wider community might be engaged to ensure 
awareness of all parties who might be able to contribute to the delivery of legacy and benefit which 
derives from the development proposed.  It is accepted that S47 and the scope of development is 
included in the DCO process places some limitations on direct consideration of legacy which might 
extend beyond the construction period.  Consultation should however make provision for wider 
engagement to demonstrate how the developer and development partners might support corporate 
priorities for growth and economic activity.

Statements of Common Ground and Local Impact Reports (page 8)

The sections of the SoCC relating to SoCG and LIR fail to take the opportunity to explain to the reader 
how process enables formal recognition of areas of consensus and common ground and how the LIR 
can then focus on areas where there remains scope for discussion, debate and negotiation.

Page 27



Applications under Town and Country Planning Acts (Page8)

The scope for contemporaneous consideration of development proposals under DCO and TCPA 
processes has the potential to give rise to considerable confusion within the community which is to 
be consulted.  The SoCC provides an opportunity to provide greater clarity and distinction between 
these processes but fails to do so as currently drafted.

Reference to PEIR (Page 9)

The scope for the community to utilise information provided within the PEIR to assess the impacts of 
the development and the potential management and mitigation of those impacts is understated.  The 
PEIR has the potential to enable greater understanding of the project by those who are consulted if 
they are correctly directed to the document and its contents.

Local Context (Page 10)

This section lacks clarity.  It is assumed that it is intended to utilise statistical information to assist in 
the understanding of the makeup of the community and to therefore adjust and target consultation 
processes accordingly.  As this part of the document is currently framed, this is not achieved.

Dropping of section referring to lessons learned from Stage 1 consultation. (Page10)

The earlier draft of the SoCC provided to the Council included more specific reference to the outcomes 
of analysis of the stage 1 consultation and how that assessment had been used to adjust and refocus 
the second stage consultation proposed.  This was considered to be a positive, constructive approach 
and its omission weakens the document now tabled.

Location for deposit of documents with the Council (Page 12)

Any document places with the Council as part of the consultation process will be held at The Market 
Hall, Market Place, Whitehaven CA28 7JG)

Other consultations (Page 17)

Does the list of other consultation activity incorrectly omit reference to West Cumbria Mining and 
United Utility Water Pipeline proposals and related consultation?

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 January 2016
	4 NuGeneration Ltd - Moorside Project - Statement of Community Consultation
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2 Copeland BC Comments on Moorside Draft Statement of Common ground


